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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
_________ District of Kansas ________ _ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. CASE NO. 23-M-6267-01-BGS 

JOEL WOMOCHIL, 

Defendant. 

COMPLAINT 

THE UNITES STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES: 

COUNT 1 

Receipt of Child Pornography 
18 U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(2) 

On or about February 14, 2023, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

JOEL WOMOCHIL, 

knowingly received child pornography, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 2256(8)(A), using any means or facility of interstate or foreign commerce, and 

did so in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce by any means including by 

computer, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252A(a)(2). 
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COUNT2 

Possession of Child Pornography 
18 U.S.C. 2252A(a)(5)(B) 

On or about August 15, 2023, in the District of Kansas, the defendant, 

JOEL WOMOCHIL, 

knowingly possessed and accessed with intent to view any computer disk and other 

material which contained an image of child pornography, as defined in Title 18, United 

States Code, Section 2256(8)(A), that had been mailed, shipped and transported in 

interstate and foreign commerce by any means, including by computer, and that was 

produced using materials that have been mailed, shipped, and transported in interstate and 

foreign commerce by any means, including by computer, and such child pornography 

involved a prepubescent minor who had not attained 12 years of age, all in violation of 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252A(a)(5)(B) and (b)(2). 

SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT WHICH IS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

TRAVIS PUTRAH 
Special Agent 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 6th day of October, 2023. 

THE HONORABLE BROOKS SEVERSON 
United States Magistrate Judge 
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PENALTIES 

Count 1 - Receipt of Child Pornography 

• Punishable by a term of imprisonment of not less than five (5) years but not more than twenty 
(20) years. If such person has a prior conviction under section 1591, chapter 71, chapter 
109A, chapter 110, or chapter 117, or under section 920 of title 10 (article 120 of the 
Uniform Code of Militaiy Justice), or under the laws of any State relating to aggravated 
sexual abuse, sexual abuse, or abusive sexual conduct involving a minor or ward, or the 
production, possession, receipt, mailing, sale, distribution, shipment, or transportation of 
child pornography, or sex trafficking of children, the term of imprisonment shall be for not 
less than fifteen ( 15) years nor more than forty ( 40) years. [18 U.S.C. § 2252A(b )( 1 )] 

• A term of supervised release of not less than five (5) years and up to life. 18 U.S.C. § 
3583(k). 

• A fine not to exceed $250,000. 18 U.S.C. § 3571(b)(3). 

• A mandatory special assessment of $100.00. 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(A). 

• A mandat01y special assessment of $5,000.00 if defendant is a non-indigent person. 18 
U.S.C. § 3014(a)(3). 

• An additional assessment of not more than $35,000.00. 18 U.S.C. § 2259A(a)(2). 

Count 2 - Possession of Child Pornography 

• Punishable by a term of imprisonment of not more than twenty years (20) years. If such 
person has a prior conviction under chapter 71, chapter 109 A, chapter 110, or chapter 11 7, 
or under section 920 of title 10 ( article 120 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice), or 
under the laws of any State relating to aggravated sexual abuse, sexual abuse, or abusive 
sexual conduct involving a minor or ward, or the production, possession, receipt, mailing, 
sale, distribution, shipment, or transportation of child pornography, the tenn of 
imprisonment shall be for not less than ten (10) years nor more than twenty (20) years. 18 
U.S.C. § 2252A(b)(2). 

• A tenn of supervised release of not less than five (5) years and up to life. 18 U.S.C. § 
3583(k). 

• A fine not to exceed $250,000.00. 18 U.S.C. § 3571(b)(3). 

• A mandatory special assessment of $100.00. 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(A). 

• A mandatory special assessment of $5,000.00 if defendant is a non-indigent person. 18 
U.S.C. §3014(a)(3) 

• An assessment of not more than $17,000.00. 18 U.S.C. § 2259A(a)(l). 
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AFFIDAVIT

1, Travis Putrah, am a Special Agent (*SA") with the Department of Homeland Security's

(‘DHS’), Homeland Security Investigations (‘HSI’), assigned to the Office of HSI Wichita,

Kansas. This criminal complaint is based on the following facts which were provided by the

National Center for Missing & Exploited Children ('NCMEC"), Synchronoss Technologies

(‘Synchronoss’), and other duly swom law enforcement officers involved in the investigation.

1. Onorabout August9, 2023, Synchronoss made a CyberTipline report to NCMEC!

regarding the uploadingoffiles containing child exploitation material? to theircloud-based storage.

backup service’.

2. On or about August 15, 2023, investigators reviewed Cybertipline report

170402754, and the filesofchild exploitation material provided to NCMEC by Synchronoss. The

following are some ofthe observations made by investigators after reviewing the files:

a FileadfeoafaBiad7297545 1cdecd68a93_106269b83cabesB484307fach

141038b865b7ac39569¢06651 feSa6blecdde” is a video file

a FileadfedafaBiadTe297545Icdecd68a93 _1205265a01e6377b3d0782Ad

€986096ebShSde6dce293ccdcIc06eI9CHDIE is a video file

approximately2 minutes in length. The videoshows| | | EEE

 NCMEC is a nonprofit organization established by th United States Congress. NCMEC operates the CyberTiplne,
‘which was established by Congress process repartsofchild sexual xploitation, NCMEC reviews thes rports and
hares them with the appropriate law enforcement agncy andor Iiemel Crimes Against Children (CAC)ask forces.
‘Anyone can make a report othe CyberTilin but reporting is required for eran electronic service providers who

become aware of child exploitationmatril.
This material may alsobereferred tas Child Pomography, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(8)
3 Synchronoss Technologies is cloud-basd sorage back up srvie that s availabe 0 Verizon Wircless customers
Who want fo sorphoto, videos, and othr digital ls managed by Synchronass Personal Cloud services.
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5 In otal, eles (12) les were provided by Symchronoss, Al 12 files contined
popingnami anit

4. Synchronoss identified that the account containing the child pomography was

asocited with telephone. number[JE Uiticing databases avaiable to law
enforcement, investigators leamed that eephone. ruberJEN as sssocoed with
JOEL JUSTICE WOMOCHIL(‘WOMOCHIL").

5. Additionally, investgsors identified WOMOCHIL as a deenion deputy
employe by he Butler County, Kansas, ShriT's Office, WOMOCHIL had alo been employed
15 the pli eeFof th Burns, Kans, polos department

6. On or about August 15, 2023, WOMOCHIL was contacted by his supervisor
wing phone number [JI WOMOCHIL was asked t report to th Butler County
Detention Fail. Afe avina his lace ofemployment, WOMOCHIL was interviewed by
tig,

7. During a pos-Miranda inerview, WOMOCHIL confirmed that the phone number
Icn0 his celular eephone. WOMOCHIL sated tha he resided of
I oro. Karas, WOMOCHIL std that he hd Verizon clr
telephone and has been the sole owner/operator of that phone since 2020. Additionally,

WOMOCHIL stated that he was the sole owner/operator of a laptop. Investigators detained the

cellular telephone that was in WOMOCHILs possession
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8 On or abou August 15, 2023, womoctit’s ince, [NN

Iivicved by investigators. [sted that WOMOCHIL had an

office inside their residence, located atiFDorado, Kanses. [JN

stated that WOMOCHIL had a laptop inside that office.

9. On or about August IS, 2023, investigators executed a search warrant at

WOMOCHIL’s residence. A laptop, an external hard drive, andother electronics were located

and seized from WOMOCHIL’s office and the residence.

10. On or about August 15, 2023, investigators obiained and executeda search warrant

for WOMOCHIL' cellular telephone. During an examinationofthat device, investigators noted

that the child pornography from CyberTipline report 170402754 was located on that device.

Investigators also located additional images ofinfants and toddlers being sexually assaulted.

11. During the examinationofWOMOCHILs cellular telephone, investigators located

a Twitter (now refered to as X) account associated with WOMOCHIL’s cellular telephone

uilizing the usemame *@ictbaddad”.

12. Investigators conducted a search online and located the publicly available

Twitter/X account @ictbaddad. The following isa sereenshotofthe Twitter/X profile:
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« ictbaddadEy .

bibl
ictbaddad

frien ttSataSa
© ttt

13. Investigators noted that pedobear’ was utilized on the Twitter/X's main profile

page.

14. During a review of “@ictbaddad” publicly available Twitter’X webpage,

investigators located fifteen (15) images that had been posted to the account. Multiple photos of

an erect male's penis were observed in those image files. Investigators noted that the photos of

the erect male’s penis had been captured inside WOMOCHIL's residenceat|EEEEEEEEEN

in El Dorado, Kansas.

15. Onor about August 23, 2023, investigators obtained and executeda search warrant

for WOMOCHIL’s “@ictbaddad” twitter account. On or about August 28, 2023, investigators

obtained Twwiter/X's response to the search warrant for account “@ictbaddad”

16. Duringareview of the content provided by Twiter/X, investigators located a direct

message sent onorabout February 14, 2023, from another Twitter/X user to the “@ictbaddad”

‘Twitter account. The following image file was sent to ICTBADDAD in that direct message

“Pedobearis a pedophili cartoon utilized by some individual engaged nthe pedophile communi. It canbe uscd
by hiscommunity to identify individuals who havea sexual interes in children.
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a File “1625507436386820100-uaSAfFIp” is an image file. The image file

17. The following is the conversation that takes place between the unidentified user

and ICTBADDAD in that direct message:

a. Unidentified User: T post real incest.

b. ICTBADDAD: Whatexactlyis onit? Irl?

c. ICTBADDAD: Cashappismy preferred.

d. Unidentified User: accept cashapp or PayPal as payment.

e. ICTBADDAD: Ok and how do I pay you?

f. Unidentified User: To join the premium incest telegram channel is $15.

g  ICTBADDAD: I like your real incest channel,

18. Onorabout August 16,2023, investigators obtaineda search warrant or the laptop

seized from WOMOCHIL’s residence. During the examination of the laptop, at least eight

hundred fifty-one (851) thumbnail images? were located on the laptop. Examiners were able to

see, utilizing the thumbnails file path, that the thumbnail images were linked to the external hard

drive seized from WOMOCHIL’s residence.

19. On or about August 22, 2023, investigators obiained a search warrant for the

extemal hard drive. During the examination of the extemal hard drive, numerous images of child

exploitation material were located.

* Thumbnails ar reducedsize versions ofpicturesovideos, used to help in recognizing, organizing and indexing
those pictures or videos

5



Based on the foregoing facts, I believe there is probable cause to find that JOEL JUSTICE 

WOMOCHIL, residing in El Dorado, Kansas, has engaged in violations of 18 U.S.C § 2252(a)(2), 

Receipt of Child Pornography on or about February 14, 2023; and engaged in violations of 18 

U.S.C. § 2252A(a)(5)(B), Possession of Child Pornography, on or about August 15, 2023. 

TRAVIS PUTRAH, Special Agent 
Homeland Security Investigations 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 6th day of October 2023. 

HONORABLEBROOKSSEVERSON 
United States Magistrate Judge. 
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